
(Applies to permanent pits, temporary pits, and below-grade tanks)

(Required if located within 1000 feet of a permanent residence, school, hospital,
institution or church)

330396

12

10,000 125 150 3

Pit 1



(Applies to permanent pits and permanent open top tanks)







Environmental Specialist Advanced

05/07/2024

API:30-025-38718 LEA FEDERAL UNIT #028 [335519]

Sarah Ferreyros

Sarah@avantnr.com 720-854-9020 

Director of Regulatory 

5/7/2024 





From: Kennedy, Joseph, EMNRD
To: Michael Wicker
Cc: sarah@avantnr.com; Barr, Leigh, EMNRD
Subject: RE: OCD Amended Email Notice for C-144 Closure Plan - Avant Natural Resources, LLC, Lea Federal Unit #028,

API #30-025-38718
Date: Wednesday, May 1, 2024 9:05:00 AM

Dear Mr. Wicker:

The OCD received a C-144 submittal package consisting of a closure plan for the temporary
pits associated with Avant Natural Resources, LLC (Avant) - Lea Federal Unit #028, API# 30-
025-38718 on April 18, 2024.  The OCD has determined that the submitted C-144 Form needs
the below additions/corrections in conjunction with the previously submitted information in
the form:

Section 10: Check the checkbox for Closure Plan.
Section 17: Fill in and certify/sign this section.
Section 22: Delete information in this section.  Note, this certification is specific to a
closure report which is different than the closure plan.

In this instance, the OCD will accept the amended C-144 Form via email and will attach the
amended form to the electronically submitted application.  Please email me the corrected
form within 7-days of email receipt of this notice.  Once OCD receives the amended C-144
Form, the OCD can proceed with approval of the application with the following conditions of
approval:

Avant must notify the surface owner by certified mail, return receipt requested of the
closure operations at least 72 hours, but not more than a week, prior to closure
operation.  Avant must submit proof of notice in the final closure report submitted to the
OCD.
Avant must notify the OCD via email at least 72 hours, but not more than a week, prior to
closure operation.  Avant must provide a copy of this email in the final closure report
submitted to the OCD.
Avant must follow the sampling methods provided in Table 1 of 19.15.17 NMAC.  Note in
the closure plan, there was a discrepancy for the proposed sampling method used for
benzene; the text section of the report did not match the method identified in the table.
Avant must also conduct a paint filter liquids test meeting EPA SW-846, Method 9095 or
other test methods approved by the OCD.
Given the OCD believes there was some type of onsite burial, Avant must meet the
requirements of 19.15.17.13(F)(3) NMAC for steel marker placement.
Avant must provide photos in the final closure report demonstrating that the temporary
pit locations have been reclaimed to pre oil and gas conditions.
In the event, sampling indicates an exceedance of the Table 1 standards for depth to
groundwater between 51 and 100 feet, Avant must electronically submit a C-141
notification for the release event.  The incident ID from this submittal must be included
in the C-144 Closure Report Application submitted to the OCD.



Avant must submit to the OCD within 60-days of closure completion a final C-144
Closure Report with all necessary attachments.  Note for temporary pits, Avant must
also submit a plat of the pit location on Form C-105 within 60-days of closing the
temporary pit.

 
Please feel free to contact me with any questions.
 
Thank you,
 
Joseph Kennedy  Environmental Scientist Specialist - Advanced
Environmental Bureau
EMNRD - Oil Conservation Division
1220 S. Saint Francis Drive | Santa Fe, New Mexico 87505
(505) 549-5583 | joseph.kennedy@emnrd.nm.gov
www.emnrd.nm.gov 
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April 18, 2024 

Victoria Venegas 
Environmental Specialist 
Environmental Bureau 
Oil Conservation Division 
New Mexico Department of Energy, Minerals, & Natural Resources 
506 West Texas Avenue 
Artesia, New Mexico 88210 

RE:  Pit Closure Plan 
Avant Natural Resources, LLC 

 Lea Federal Unit #028 
 API #30-025-38718 
 Section 24, Township 20 South, Range 34 East, 810 FNL, 810 FEL 
 32.5636559, -103.5077896 NAD83 
  
Victoria Venegas,  

On behalf of Avant Natural Resources, LLC (Avant), CDH Consulting, LLC (CDH) is submitting this Pit Closure 
Plan in accordance with 19.15.17.13 New Mexico Administrative Code (NMAC) to the New Mexico 
Department of Energy, Minerals, and Natural Resources-Oil Conservation Division (NMOCD) detailing 
protocols and procedures closing the permitted drilling pits formerly utilized at the Lea Federal Unit #028 
(API #30-025-38718) production location (Site). 

Avant discovered the Lea Federal Unit #028 had an open pit permit during a recent acquisition.  The Initial 
Form C-144 (Pit Registration) was submitted by Samson Resources Company on January 23, 2008, and 
approved by the NMOCD on January 24, 2008.  As the current operator of the Lea Federal Unit #028, and 
in an effort to be good stewards of the land, Avant’s goal is to properly close the open pit permit as soon 
as possible.  

MODIFICATION TO AN EXISTING PERMIT/ OR REGISTRATION 

Avant requests the NMOCD change the registration to meet the current pit rule requirements and 
sampling limits per 19.15.17.13 NMAC. 

SITING CRITERIA 

The Initial Form C-144, approved on January 24, 2008, documented the use of drilling pits equipped with 
12-mil synthetic liners and a 10,000-barrel (bbl) capacity.  The siting criteria specified a depth to 
groundwater of 80 feet below ground surface (bgs), that the site is not located within 200 feet of a private 
domestic water source or less than 1,000 feet from other sources, and the distance to surface water is 
greater than 1,000 feet.  The Initial C-144 (Pit Registration) is included as Attachment A. 

http://www.cdhconsult.com/
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The site is located approximately 14.8 miles west-southwest of Monument, New Mexico, at an elevation 
of 3,670 feet above mean sea level.  The site is not overlying a subsurface mine, within an unstable area, 
or within a 100-year floodplain.  The nearest continuously flowing waterway is the Pecos River located 
approximately 35.8 miles southwest of the site.   

The following closure criteria will be utilized to compare soil analytical results for temporary drilling pit 
closure 5-point composite samples per the NMOCD-approved Initial C-144.  

Table  
Closure Criteria for Soils Beneath Below-Grade Tanks, Drying Pads Associated with Closed-Loop 

Systems and Pits where Contents are Removed 
Depth below bottom 
of pit to groundwater 
less than 10,000 mg/L 

TDS Constituent Method Limit 

51 feet-100 feet 

Chloride EPA 300.0 10,000 mg/kg 

TPH 
EPA SW-846 

2,500 mg/kg 
Method 418.1 

GRO+DRO 
EPA SW-846 

1,000 mg/kg 
Method 8015M 

BTEX EPA SW-846 Method 
8021B or 8260B 50 mg/kg 

Benzene EPA SW-846 Method 
8021B or 8015M 10 mg/kg 

          Notes:  mg/L – milligrams per liter; mg/kg – milligrams per kilogram 

CLOSURE PLAN 

The Initial Form C-144 documented the use of lined, temporary drilling pits equipped with 12-mil synthetic 
liners, a 10,000 bbl capacity, and included a site diagram specifying the proposed locations of the two 
temporary drilling pits.  One temporary drilling pit was proposed to be placed north of the eastern portion 
of the production pad with an aerial extent of 150 feet by 125 feet to a depth of 3 feet bgs.  The second 
temporary drilling pit was proposed to be located west of the northern portion of the production pad with 
a dimension of 30 feet by 30 feet to an unknown depth.  A review of historical aerial photographs utilizing 
Google Earth indicated the larger temporary drilling pit was placed north of the eastern portion of the 
production pad and the smaller temporary drilling pit was placed as proposed, west of the northern 
portion of the production pad.  On October 2, 2023, the former temporary drilling pits were confirmed to 
have been backfilled and returned to pre oil and gas conditions during a visual inspection. 

Upon NMOCD approval of this Pit Closure Plan, Avant will notify the surface owner by certified mail (return 
receipt requested) that Avant plans closure activities at least 72 hours, but not more than one week, prior 
to any closure operation.  Avant will notify the NMOD Artesia district office verbally and in writing at least 
72 hours, but not more than one week, prior to any closure activities. 
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CDH personnel will mobilize to the well location to assess soil beneath the two former temporary drilling 
pit locations.  Utilizing a hand auger, a 5-point composite sample will be collected from below each of the 
former temporary drilling pit locations.  Soil samples to be collected beneath the former temporary drilling 
pits are anticipated to be collected from a depth of 3.5 feet bgs (0.5 feet below former pit bottom); 
however, actual collection depth may vary if field observation indicates a pit depth other than 3 feet bgs.   

The soil will be visually inspected for signs of petroleum hydrocarbons such as odor and soil staining.  The 
portion of the soil sample that will be submitted for laboratory analysis will be placed in a laboratory-
provided 4-ounce glass jar, labeled, and placed immediately on ice and stored in a cooler.  Another portion 
of the soil sample (that will not be submitted for laboratory analysis) will be placed in resealable plastic 
bag, agitated, and allowed approximately 10 minutes of volatilization time.  A photoionization detector 
(PID) will be utilized to measure the volatile organic compounds (VOCs) desorbing from soil following 
10 minutes of volatilization time.  The location, depth, and VOCs concentration will be documented by 
CDH field staff.   

Each soil sample will be analyzed for chloride per the United States Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) Method 300.0, total petroleum hydrocarbons (TPH) per EPA Method 418.1, TPH-gasoline range 
organics (GRO) and TPH-diesel range organics (DRO) per EPA Method 8015M, benzene per EPA Method 
8206B, and benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene, and total xylenes (BTEX) per EPA Method 8260B. 

As the temporary drilling pits have been returned to pre oil and gas conditions, contaminated soil is not 
anticipated during confirmation closure sampling; however, if analytical results indicate an exceedance of 
Table I (19.15.29.12), Avant would notify the NMOCD of the exceedance(s) of Table 1 per 19.15.29.10 
NMAC, assess/characterize the exceedances per 19.15.29.11 NMAC, remediate/close the exceedances 
per 19.15.29.12, and restore the impacted surface to pre oil and gas conditions per 19.15.29.13 NMAC. 

Within 60 days of receiving laboratory analytical results indicating compliance with Table I of 
19.15.17.13 NMAC, Avant will submit a Pit Closure Report via Form C-144, with necessary attachments to 
document all closure activities including sampling results and information required by 19.15.17 NMAC.  

Please do not hesitate to contact me at (303) 501-3415 or KTrantowLim@CDHConsult.com if you have 
any questions or require additional information. 

Kind Regards,  

CDH CONSULTING, LLC 

 
 
 
Michael A. Wicker, P.G. Karen Trantow Lim, P.G. 
Project Manager Program Manager, Environmental Compliance 
 
cc:  Sarah Ferreyros — Avant Natural Resources, LLC (electronic file) 
  

mailto:KTrantowLim@CDHConsult.com
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Figure 1 – Site Location 
Figure 2 – Site Map 
 
Attachment A – Initial C-144 
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Figure 1 - Site Location
Lea Federal Unit #028

Lea County, NM

Avant Natural Resources                               Date Created: 2/12/2024
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Figure 2 - Site Map
Lea Federal Unit #028

Lea County, NM

Avant Natural Resources                               Date Created: 1/17/2024
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ATTACHMENT A 
Initial C-144  
 







District I
1625 N. French Dr., Hobbs, NM 88240
Phone:(575) 393­6161 Fax:(575) 393­0720

District II
811 S. First St., Artesia, NM 88210
Phone:(575) 748­1283 Fax:(575) 748­9720

District III
1000 Rio Brazos Rd., Aztec, NM 87410
Phone:(505) 334­6178 Fax:(505) 334­6170

District IV
1220 S. St Francis Dr., Santa Fe, NM 87505
Phone:(505) 476­3470 Fax:(505) 476­3462

State of New Mexico
Energy, Minerals and Natural Resources

Oil Conservation Division
1220 S. St Francis Dr.
Santa Fe, NM 87505

CONDITIONS

Action  334811

CONDITIONS
Operator:

Avant Operating, LLC
1515 Wynkoop Street
Denver, CO 80202

OGRID:

330396
Action Number:

334811
Action Type:

[C­144] Temporary Pit Plan (C­144T)

CONDITIONS

Created By Condition Condition
Date

joseph.kennedy Please see conditions of approval emailed to 4/30/2024

joseph.kennedy NMOCD has reviewed and approved Avant Natural Resources, LLC, Closure Plan and Amended Form C­144 received on 05/07/2024 for Lea
Federal Unit #028, API #30­025­38718, temporary pits in Unit A, Section 24, Township 20S, Range 34E, Lea County, New Mexico. This application is
approved with conditions.

5/7/2024


